
 
AGENDA 

 
WETLANDS REVIEW BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

March 24, 2016 
Marine View 4th Floor Large Conference Room 

5:15 P.M. 
 
I. ROLL CALL   
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  
 March 3, 2016 
 (March 12 special meeting minutes are not available yet)  
 
III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
IV. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
  
V. BOARD COMMENTS 
 
VI. AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

1) USE2016 0004 Hidden Valley (upper Lemon Creek) Gravel Extraction  
A. Staff Presentation 
 
B. Applicant Presentation 
 
C. Public Testimony 
 
D. Board/Staff Discussion 
 
E. Motion 
 

2) Continuation of wetland methodology review on formulas and models 
 

VII. PENDING PERMITS & UPDATES  
 

1)  Juneau Wetlands Management Plan Update  
 

VIII. PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON UPDATE 
 
IX. SCHEDULE FOR NEXT BOARD MEETING 
  
 
Thursday April 7, 5:15 pm; wetland methodology workshop Marine View 4th floor conference room 
 
Thursday April 21, 5:15 pm;  wetland methodology workshop and regular meeting, City Hall room 224 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 



DRAFT WRB Minutes – Regular Meeting March 3, 2016 Page 1 of 5 

DRAFT MINUTES 
WETLANDS REVIEW BOARD 

March 3, 2016, 5:15 p.m. Marine View 4th Floor Conference Room 
 
 
Meeting Summary 
 
Roll Call 
 
Board Members Present:   Amy Sumner, Brenda Wright, Lisa Hoferkamp, Percy Frisby, Irene 

Gallion, Nina Horne, Andrew Campbell 
 
Board Members Absent:   Hal Geiger, Ben Haight 
 
A quorum was present. 
 
Staff Members Present:    Teri Camery, Senior Planner; Jonathan Lange, Planner II 
 
Public Present:    Alan Steffert, CBJ Engineering; Richard Harris; Art Dunn 
 
Meeting called to order at 5:20 p.m. 
 
II.  January 21, 2016 minutes approved as written 

 
III.   Agenda approved 
 
IV.   Public Participation on Non‐Agenda Items.  

None 
 

V. Board Comments.  
   None 
 
VI.   Agenda Items 
 

1) SMP 2016 0001 Major Subdivision Review 
 
Ms.  Gallion  explained  that  she  had  a  conflict  of  interest  due  to  her  firm’s  interest  in  the 
proposal, and recused herself from the discussion and the vote.  
 
Staff presentation 
 
Ms. Camery explained that the Board was reviewing this major subdivision in its advisory role, 
and  that  comments  would  be  incorporated  into  the  planner’s  staff  report  to  the  Planning 
Commission. Mr.  Lange  provided  an  overview  of  the  subdivision  proposal  for  26  lots,  and 



DRAFT WRB Minutes – Regular Meeting March 3, 2016 Page 2 of 5 

explained  that  the  proposal  affects  1.6  acres  of wetlands  but  no  anadromous  streams.  He 
referred to a letter from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service regarding stormwater, and explained 
the applicant’s stormwater proposal.  
 
Applicant presentation 
 
Mr. Harris said he would answer any questions from the Board.  
 
Board/staff discussion 
 
Ms. Wright and Mr. Campbell asked Mr. Harris questions regarding the routing of stormwater 
and the effect on anadromous waters  in the Mendenhall State Game Refuge across the road. 
Mr. Campbell said that a final stormwater management plan would be required from the CBJ at 
the final plat stage; the current plat review was for the preliminary plat when full details are not 
yet required.  
 
Dr. Hoferkamp proposed the following motion: 
 

The Wetlands Review Board  supports  the project with  the understanding  that  the CBJ 
Stormwater  Manual  of  Best  Management  Practices  will  be  strictly  adhered  to  and 
appropriately enforced.  

 
The Board approved the motion unanimously.  
 

2) CSP2016 0002 City Project Review for West Douglas Pioneer Road 
 
Staff presentation 
 
Ms.  Camery  said  that  she  had  strong  personal  views  on  the  project  and  needed  to  recuse 
herself  from  the  discussion  for  this  reason.  She  said  she would  respond  only  to  questions 
regarding  the  Board’s  role.  She  said  that  the  board was  again  reviewing  the  project  in  its 
advisory  role,  and  that  Board  comments  and motions would  be  included  in  planner’s  staff 
report to the Planning Commission.  
 
Ms.  Gallion  explained  that  she  had  a  conflict  of  interest  due  to  her  firm’s  interest  in  the 
proposal, and recused herself from the discussion and the vote.  
 
Mr. Lange provided an overview of the project, a 2 ¼ mile long single lane road equivalent to a 
driveway, which would not be platted as a city street at this time. He explained that the area is 
designated as a New Growth Area  in  the Comprehensive Plan. He said  that  the road corridor 
goes  only  through  CBJ  property;  Goldbelt  property  is  located  along  the  coast.  He  said  the 
project impacts 1.65 acres of wetlands, and referred to the Corps Permit in the packet. He also 
referred  to  comments  from  the U.S.  Fish  and Wildlife  Service  that  address  habitat  impacts, 
specifically sediment impacts on downstream fish habitat and high quality deer habitat.  



DRAFT WRB Minutes – Regular Meeting March 3, 2016 Page 3 of 5 

 
Ms. Wright expressed concerns that ADFG did not conduct their field work at the time of year 
when  cutthroat  trout  would  be  found  in  the  drainages  there,  therefore  this  resource  was 
omitted  from  their studies. Board members asked  the applicant questions regarding  the  final 
alignment  and  the  alternatives  considered. Mr.  Steffert  reviewed  the  three  alternatives  that 
were considered and explained the process of comparing impacts between them. He explained 
that CBJ chose the upper alignment to stay within CBJ Land and to stay out of the fish zone. He 
said  he  had  walked  the  route  with  the  U.S.  Fish  and Wildlife  Service  and  integrated  their 
concerns  into  the design. He  explained  that Goldbelt  Inc.  supports  the project  for  access  to 
their property from city land, however Goldbelt is opposed to a road on their land.  
 
Ms. Wright asked who would use the road, and Mr. Steffert explained that it’s a policy decision 
that  is up  to  the Assembly. Mr. Campbell  inquired about whether  the proposal would be  the 
final right‐of‐way location, and Mr. Steffert said yes.  
 
Ms.  Horne  asked  about  the  public  process.  Mr.  Steffert  explained  that  the  CBJ  Assembly 
appropriated the funds for the development through a public process. Mr. Lange explained the 
CSP review process.  
 
Mr. Campbell and Dr. Hoferkamp asked about ADFG permits, which Mr. Steffert reviewed with 
the Board.  
 
Mr. Campbell said  it was unfortunate  that pristine habitat would be violated but he  felt  that 
options  had  been  well‐explored  and  he  didn’t  see  a  better  alternative.  He  suggested  a 
recommendation  to approve  the project with Best Management Practices  to ensure  that  the 
development is conducted in the least obtrusive fashion.  
 
Ms. Wright proposed the following motion: 
 

The Wetlands Review Board does not approve  the building of  this  road.  If  the  road  is 
constructed,  Best Management  Practices  and  proper  hydrological  practices  must  be 
strictly adhered to 

 
Dr. Hoferkamp seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Campbell said he could support the second half of the motion, but not the first half. 
 
Roll Call vote: 
 
Yes: Horne, Wright, Hoferkamp 
No: Campbell, Frisby 
Abstained: Sumner 
 
Motion failed.  



DRAFT WRB Minutes – Regular Meeting March 3, 2016 Page 4 of 5 

 
Ms. Hoferkamp proposed a new motion: 
 

The  Wetlands  Review  Board  recommends  that  if  the  project  is  pursued  that  Best 
Management  Practices  be  strongly  adhered  to  with  the  goal  of  maintaining  water 
quality and fish passage.  

 
Ms. Wright second the motion: 
 
Roll call vote: 
Yes: Campbell, Frisby, Sumner, Hoferkamp 
No: Wright 
Abstained: Horne 
 
Motion failed.  
 
Ms. Wright said she is still opposed to the project. Mr. Steffert said that the Board’s comments 
would be carefully noted.  
 
 

3) Juneau Wetlands Management Plan Update 
 
Ms.  Camery  said  that  she  has  received  the  second  draft  of  the  JWMP, which  is  undergoing 
internal review and comment. She said that the final draft of the JWMP from the consultants 
would be presented to the Board, Habitat Mapping Working Group, Planning Commission, and 
Assembly Lands Committee in a final series of meetings in April and May before the grant and 
contract expire on June 1. She said that the latest draft follows the board’s guidance for a plan 
that can be adopted as  is, to promote use of the  information, with goals and policies that will 
lead to development of wetland categories in the future.  
 
 
VII. Pending Permits and Updates 
 

1) Lemon Creek Gravel Extraction 
 
Ms.  Camery  said  that  CDD  has  received  an  application  for  mining  in  the  Lemon  Creek 
streambed farther upstream in Hidden Valley. This application will come to the board for their 
advisory review at the March 24 regular meeting.  
 

2) Wetlands Review Board Wetland Methodology Workshops 
 
Ms.  Camery  referred  to  the  board meeting  list  and  reviewed  the  agenda  for  the  upcoming 
workshop, Saturday March 12, 8:30‐5:30 in the Assembly Chambers.  
 



DRAFT WRB Minutes – Regular Meeting March 3, 2016 Page 5 of 5 

3) Southeast Alaska Fish Habitat Partnership wetland methodology peer review 
 
Ms.  Camery  explained  that  SEAKFHP would  be  undertaking  a  technical  peer  review  of  the 
WESPAK‐SE  wetland  methodology,  with  the  goal  of  establishing  “confidence  intervals”  for 
various  functions  and  values  assessed  by  the methodology.  She  said  that  SEAKFTP  partners 
might  be  attending  the  Wetlands  Review  Board  workshop  to  gain  a  better  general 
understanding of the methodology. She said that Debbie Hart, SEAKFHP Coordinator, would be 
also be facilitating the Wetlands Review Board wetland methodology workshops.    
 
VIII. Planning Commission Liaison Update.  
 
No update was given.   
 
IX.  Next  meeting:    Wetland  Methodology  Workshop,  Saturday  March  12,  8:30‐5:30  pm 
Assembly Chambers 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:20 p.m. 
 



	

	

	
	
	
	
     
 
DATE:      March 15, 2016 
 
TO:      Wetlands Review Board 

FROM:     Tim Felstead, Planner  
      Community Development Department 
 
PROPOSAL:  A Conditional Use Permit to extract extract/mine gravel from patent lands in 

Hidden Valley, Lemon Creek. 
 
APPLICANT:    SECON Inc. 
 
ADDRESS:  Hidden Valley, Lemon Creek 

 

 
 

Community Development 

City & Borough of Juneau • Community Development 
155 S. Seward Street • Juneau, AK  99801 

(907) 586‐0715 Phone • (907) 586‐4529 Fax 



	

	

 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for the extraction of sand and gravel in stream 
bed of Lemon Creek in the Hidden Valley area.  The extraction would be located in three areas within 
gravel bars at the edge of the current Lemon Creek Stream bed.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
SECON Inc. is seeking to establish new gravel extraction areas further upstream in the Lemon Creek 
stream bed than is currently permitted under USE2012 0019 and USE 2003 00045 in the Lemon Creek. 
(See Project Narrative,  Attachment A).   
 
The extraction will provide sands and gravels for local construction projects. 
 
The proposed site locations are a relatively far away from the nearest use although there is an 
explosives store along the potential access route to the severance site furthest upstream.  If this route 
is used then adequate protection should be provided to prevent vehicle and equipment collisions with 
these storage containers. 
 
The extraction will occur in three severance areas which will be approved by the Alaska Department of  
Fish and Game (ADFG).  All severance areas have a 30ft buffer between the extraction areas and the 
existing stream channel.  The severance areas will be staked by ADFG biologists.  Berms will be created 
across dry channels to provide additional protection to the severance zones from any flooding. 
 
SECON is proposing to start at the downstream severance zone and move upstream to the additional 
severance zones in sequence.   
 
Amounts of possible gravel to be extracted is based on an assumed depth of 15ft and estimates of the 
size of the potential severance zone once buffers have been taken into account.  No samples cores 
have been taken to fully understand the depth of gravels in the three severance zones. 
 
The downstream location is the easiest to access due to its proximity to existing SECON road.  
Construction plans (see Attachment 2 of Attachment A) indicate a volume of up to 149, 243 cubic yards 
could be extracted from this location. 
 
The second severance zone would require the creek to be bridged.  SECON has proposed two bridging 
options: 
 

1. a temporary bridge (if operation period in order of days) which would require construction of 
banks to support the structure. 

2. a seasonal bridge (remaining for the whole mining season) which would require a more 
substantial bank to be created with possible need for bank armoring.  



	

	

 
It is noted that the bridge should be able to be removed in the event that waters rise quickly.  The 
applicant will have to explain how the bridge would be removed for both options.  SECON’s preferred 
location for this bridge is based on where an existing rip‐rap bank exists on the western side of the 
creek.   Plans indicate up to 120,057 cubic yards could be extracted from this location. 
 
A third severance zone would be further upstream and two alternatives are proposed to access this 
area.  The first option would see a second bridge placed across the creek with vehicles and machinery 
accessing via Severance zone 2 and up the eastern side of the creek.  The second option would see the 
old logging road used with a small stream either being bridged or culverted.  There is a shared access 
easement along this road with surrounding property owners.  Up to 33,777 cubic yards could be 
removed from this location. 
 
Additional fill to construct an access road to the three severance sites has been permitted by the Army 
Corp of Engineers (see Attachment 4 of Attachment A). 
 
A gravel wash station will be used to remove small vegetative material from the extracted sand and 
gravel.  SECON has not yet obtained a water use permit from DNR for this operation.  They do have a 
pond on their site which could potentially be used without a DNR permit. 
 
It is expected sediment from vehicles hauling from the site will have shed by the time it reaches the 
public road system.  Use of a vehicle wash could be required if sediment began to appear on the public 
road system.  Vehicles moving back onto the existing quarry road will pass through a wash station on 
SECON property and again as they enter the public road system. Vehicle fueling will take place above 
OMHW.  
 
Vegetation in the severance zones is mainly alders.  These would be cleared in the gravel extraction 
areas and where necessary to construct access roads.  Cleared vegetation is to be left on site following 
completion of the works as per the State Fish and Game permit. 
 
At  the  time of writing,  the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation  (ADEC)  requested  the 
applicant  inform  them of  any high  turbidity events.    It  also noted  that  Lemon Creek  is  listed  as  an 
impaired water  body  due  to  sediment  loading  and  turbidity.  Lemon  Creek  is  one  of  five  impaired 
waterbodies within  the borough.   SECON monitor  turbidly at  the Anka St  site by  taking a  sample of 
water  above  and  below  the  extraction  site  –  the  same method  would  be  employed  at  this  new 
location.   
 
Following the end of the extraction season the berms will be removed from the flood plains allowing 
the severance voids to be  filled with sediment during high water events.   SECON has suggested that 
sediment  captured by  these voids will be beneficial  to  slow  current erosion occurring  in  the  Lemon 
Creek floodplain of Hidden Valley. 
 
Where channels are not filled and become useful habitat for anadromous fish it is expected ADFG will 
remove the new pond from future extraction activities. 



	

	

 
SECON also list other benefits that may occur: 

 Stabilize stream channel 

 Vegetation can reclaim the stream banks 

 Much slower erosion of banks 

 Habitat for indigenous fish 

 Prevent eroded sands and gravels from transporting to the lower Lemon Creek reaches, which 
reduces flood potential downstream 

 With less active erosion, the turbidity may be less during high water events.   
 
 
Habitat‐  The  length  of  Lemon  Creek  in  the  project  area  is  catalogued  as  an  anadromous  stream 
supporting Chum and Coho salmon, and Dolly Varden Char (see Attachment B).    Development along 
the  creek  is  subject  to  habitat  buffers  in  CBJ  Title  49.70.310(a)  (4)  and  (b)  (1),  as well  as  at  CBJ 
49.70.950(f).  Gravel extraction is exempt from the 50ft setback requirement normally associated with 
anadromous streams.    
 
 
49.70.950(f) exempts gravel extraction  from  the 50ft  setback  requirement normally associated with 
anadromous streams.    
 

49.70.950 (f) All structures and foundations located adjacent to streams or lakes listed in 
Table VI‐2 of Appendix C of the Juneau Coastal Management Plan, shall have a 50‐feet 
setback from each side of the stream or lake measured from the ordinary high water 
mark, where feasible and prudent; provided, docks, bridges, culverts and public 
structures whose purpose is access to or across the stream or lake are not subject to this 
policy, and provided further, uses which must be in or adjacent to the stream or lake in 
order to function, such as mining activities, fish culturing, water supply intakes and 
similar uses, are exempt from the setback requirement. The setback shall be vegetated 
or revegetated, where feasible and prudent, and such vegetation or revegetation shall 
be kept or arranged to maximize shade on the stream.  

SECON proposes to build up to two temporary bridges which could potentially remain in place for the 
entire mining season.  State Fish and Game have approved the use of bridges to cross creek with 
specific design requirements to be met.  The location of these bridges could shift over the lifetime of 
the operation to respect newly formed habitat ponds and channels with relatively still water.  ADFG 
would take the lead on determining when and how bridges should be located during the yearly mining 
plan review. 
 
Wetlands – Based on the WESPAK wetlands mapping layer a small area of wetlands appears to exist in 
the lot but is outside of the proposed severance zones. 
 
Additional fill to construct an access roads to the three severance sites has been permitted by the 



	

	

Army Corp of Engineers (see Attachment 4 of Attachment A). 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Wetlands Review Board is to review the subject application and proposed project in their scientific 
advisory  role,  and  to make  comments  and  a motion  that will  be  included  in  a  staff  report  to  the 
Planning Commission.   
 
Any approval of a CBJ permit should attempt to provide for 49.70.950 (c)(7): 

49.70.950 (c)(7):  Rivers, streams and lakes shall be managed so as to protect natural 
vegetation, water quality, important fish or wildlife habitat and natural waterflow.  

 In additional to the general review and comments, Staff would appreciate guidance from the WRB on 
the following aspects of the proposal: 

i) The season to extract gravel.  The application indicates a season that runs from March to 
November.  Greg Albrecht (ADFG) indicated that if conditions allowed, he would like to see 
more mining during the winter months.  Staff suggests a year round permit to facilitate this. 

ii) Should any severance area be mined preferentially over others?  It is clear the preference is 
to work the downstream site first and then work upstream.   

iii) The methods to access the 2nd and 3rd severance areas are listed as options. Is there a 
preferred method of access? The ADFG permit specifically describes how the bridge 
abutments should be constructed of log and gravel with flatcars providing the crossing.  In 
recognition of the dynamic nature of the Lemon Creek floodplain, Staff suggests allowing 
retain flexibility in crossing locations and design.  This would be agreed at an annual review 
of the mining plan in consultation with relevant agencies, in particular ADFG.   

iv) If there should be a time limit after which the permit needs to be renewed.  It is expected 
conditions imposed by CBJ and other agencies allows for the permit to be cancelled should 
significant violations occur.  Given there will be an annual review of the mining plan for the 
forthcoming year a permit period of 10 years is suggested  

 
At  this  stage of  the  review process permit  conditions  for  the  extraction will heavily draw on  those 
provided in the Notice of Decision for USE2012 0019 (See Attachment C).  Some conditions have been 
removed where they were considered irrelevant to the site.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A – Conditional Use Permit Review Application and Narrative 
B – Memorandum from AK Department of Fish and Game 
C – Notice of Decision for USE2012 0019.	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	



tim_felstead
Text Box
Attachment A - Application and Narrative (including ADFG permit and ACOE permit)











































































































MEMORANDUM State of Alaska 
 Department of Fish and Game 
 Division of Habitat 
 

 

 TO: Jackie Timothy DATE: September 16, 2015 
        Southeast Regional Supervisor 
   FILE NO: FH13-I-0057 
 
   SUBJECT: Hidden Valley gravel  
    mine trip report  
    September 9, 2015 
 FROM: Greg Albrecht 
  Habitat Biologist PHONE NO: (907) 465-6384 
      
 
On September 9th I visited Lemon Creek (ADFG Steam no. 111-40-10100; cataloged for chum 
and coho salmon and Dolly Varden char) adjacent to the SECON owned rock quarry where they 
plan to extract gravel on two bars (Figure 1). Mike Short (SECON) described their intent to 
begin at the downstream end of the lower bar and remove 10 to 50,000 cubic yards of material 
annually, depending on demand. In 2013, Habitat Division issued fish habitat permit FH13-I-
0057 for the activity, but work did not occur and the authorization has expired.  
 
I observed the lower gravel bar to be partially vegetated with alder, birch, and spruce trees. The 
bar is 1300 ft long by 200–450 ft wide, a 7.5 acre area (Figure 1). On my visit, gravel bar banks 
varied from 0–8 ft above the main channel (Figure 2). Water was springing up in a high flow 
channel about 200 ft from the downstream end of the bar and I encountered a 40 ft long isolated 
pond in an alder grove at the upstream end (Figures 3–6).  
 
SECON does not intend to access the upstream gravel bar any time soon as the annual demand of 
material can be mined from the lower bar. Mining will occur during low water when the ground 
is not frozen. Temporary berms upstream in dry channels will protect the area in the event of 
rapid flow rise (Figure 6). 
 
Mike and I agreed that a mine site at the downstream end of the bar in the dry channel could 
capture bed load during high flow and allow for repeat mining. The excavation would be 
connected to the main stem and possibly provide habitat for rearing fish. I will reissue FH13-I-
0057 for mine operation and work with SECON to stake the mine location prior to extraction and 
monitor channel changes and fish use after. 
 

 

tim_felstead
Text Box
Attachment B - ADFG field report



Hidden Valley gravel mine TR 2 September 16, 2015 

 
     Figure 1.–Area map. 

 



Hidden Valley gravel mine TR 3 September 16, 2015 

 
Figure 2.–Looking upstream with the gravel at left. 

 
Figure 3.–Looking downstream from the lower end of the bar where flow emerged in  

a gravel bar channel. 
 

 
Figure 4.–Looking upstream at the location where flow emerges in the channel. 



Hidden Valley gravel mine TR 4 September 16, 2015 

 
Figure 5.–Area map showing possible outline of 1.5 acre mine site (orange), flow emerging  

in the dry channel (blue dashed), and potential temporary berm sites (red). 



Hidden Valley gravel mine TR 5 September 16, 2015 

  

 
Figure 6.–Disconnected pond with no fish visible. 

Email cc:   
 Al Ott, ADF&G Habitat, Fairbanks  
 ADF&G Habitat Staff, Douglas 
 Dan Teske, ADF&G/SF, Juneau 
 Dave Harris, ADF&G/CF, Juneau 
 Stephanie Sell, ADF&G/WC, Juneau 
 Cindy Hartmann Moore, NMFS, Juneau 
 Steve Brockmann, USFWS, Juneau 
 Linda Speerstra, USACE, Sitka 
 Teri Camery, CBJ, Juneau 
 Michael Short, SECON, Juneau 



tim_felstead
Text Box
Attachement C - USE 2012-00019 Conditions









Southeast Alaska Land Trust 

Organization, 

In-Lieu Fee Program, 

& 

CIAP Grant Project 
 

Allison Gillum 

March 12, 2016 



 

• Founded in 1995 

 

• Private, 501(c)3 non-profit organization 

 

• 1 of 7 land trusts in Alaska 

 
 



 
MISSION STATEMENT 

 

The Southeast Alaska Land Trust cooperates with 
communities, landowners, agencies, and others to 
ensure that habitat, recreation, open space, and 

historic areas remain in place for the well-being of each 
generation. 



 

• Protects 30 properties totaling nearly 3,500 acres: 
• 15 conservation easements 
• 14 fee-simple title 
• 1 deed restriction 



 

• Properties located in: 
• Juneau 
• Excursion Inlet 
• Sitka 
• Kake 
• Haines 
• Farragut Bay 



 

• Follows national standards & practices for 
conservation property acquisition and long-term 
stewardship 

 

• Annually monitors properties & is prepared to take 
action if needed 



Jensen-Olson Arboretum, Juneau 



Jensen-Olson Arboretum, Juneau 



SEAL Trust In-Lieu Fee Program 

 



SEAL Trust In-Lieu Fee Program 

• 1998 - Original agreement between SEAL Trust and 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) 

 

• 2011 - Revised In-Lieu Fee “Instrument” 

 

• Since 2002, about 640 acres protected with ILF 
monies 



How ILF Program Works 

•SEAL Trust has pool of advance wetland “credits”  

 

•Upon request, SEAL Trust calculates an ILF 
estimate (land, real estate, stewardship, admin 
costs) for mitigation required in a Corps permit 

 
 



How ILF Program Works 

• If ILF payment is made, SEAL Trust assumes the 
permittee’s mitigation obligation as wetland “debits” 

 

• SEAL Trust acquires conservation property with 
wetland attributes (Corps/IRT approval) 

 

• “Recycles” debits back to pool of advance credits 

 
 



How ILF Program Works 

•Permittees: individuals, cities, non-profits, State 
DOT, FHA, USFS, University, tribal associations, 
mining & seafood companies 

 
 



 
 



How Does SEAL Trust Select Properties? 

•Willing Landowners 

 

•Mitigation sites located in same HUC as wetland 
impacts 

 

•High functioning wetland habitats 

 



Crescent Bay (Sitka) ILF Mitigation Project 



Farragut Estuary ILF Mitigation Project  



Mud Bay (Haines) ILF Mitigation Project 



SEAL Trust’s CIAP Grant Project 

 



SEAL Trust’s CIAP Grant Project 

• Revised In-Lieu Fee “Instrument” in 2011 highlighted 
the need for a regionally-specific, consistent, and 
science-based method to evaluate the ecological 
functions and values of wetland sites 



SEAL Trust’s CIAP Grant Project 

• 2010 – Evaluation of rapid wetland assessment 
methods 

 

• Wetland Ecosystem Services Protocol-US (WESPUS) 
was selected to be adapted to Southeast Alaska 



SEAL Trust’s CIAP Grant Project 

• 2011 - WESPAK-SE protocol was initially calibrated 
with 32 Southeast Alaska wetland sites 

 

• 2012 - SEAL Trust hosted first classroom training and 
field-based trials of the WESPAK-SE 



SEAL Trust’s CIAP Grant Project 

• 2013 – SEAL Trust awarded CIAP Grant (2013-2016) 

 

• Project Title: “Coastal Wetlands Protection in 
Southeast Alaska” 

 

• Tasks included building on WESPAK-SE “beta version” 
field tested in 2012 



SEAL Trust’s CIAP Grant Project 

• 2013 to 2014 – statistically selected tidal wetlands (55 
sites) and non-tidal wetlands (119 sites) were 
assessed to: 

• refine the protocol 
• provide a relative context for interpreting the WESPAK-SE 

scores 



SEAL Trust’s CIAP Grant Project 

• Further, in 2013 CBJ contracted the WESPAK-SE developer 
for further tool development  

 

• Included peer review workshops where input from local 
subject matter experts was solicited specific to variables 
used in the assessment methodology 

 

• In 2014 and 2015 the CBJ assessed 360 assessment areas 
with the updated protocol 



SEAL Trust’s CIAP Grant Project 

• Tidal Wetlands: 
• 7 variables called “function” scores  
• 7 variables called “value” scores  

• Non-Tidal Wetlands: 
• 18 function scores  
• 19 value scores 



SEAL Trust’s CIAP Grant Project 

• In general, WESPAK-SE is intended to provide 
agencies, non-governmental organizations, and the 
development community a consistent tool for 
evaluating the functions and values of wetland sites 
for: 

• Landscape assessment 
• Impact analysis 
• Mitigation planning 
• Conservation actions 



SEAL Trust’s CIAP Grant Project 

• WESPAK‐SE is intended to help address the national 
policy goal of “no net loss” 

 

• Goal pertains not only to wetland acreage but also to 
the ecosystem services that wetlands provide 
naturally 



SEAL Trust’s CIAP Grant Project 

• SEAL Trust’s other tasks under CIAP Grant: 
• Intertidal/Nearshore Assessment Tool (NATAK-SE) 

 
• Credit-Debit Method 

• To balance wetland “credits” gained from mitigation sites to 
compensate for wetlands lost at impact sites “debits” 



 

119 Seward Street, Suite 2 

Juneau, AK 99801 

Phone: 907-586-3100 

Email: allison@setrust.net 

Website: www.southeastalaskalandtrust.org 

Executive Director: Allison Gillum 
 

mailto:allison@setrust.net
http://www.southeastalaskalandtrust.org/


How the WESPAK-SE Tool Was Used to Assess 
Juneau Wetland Functions and Their Context 

Workshop Presentation, 12 March 2016 
to the Wetlands Review Board, Juneau, AK 

Dr. Paul Adamus 

Funded by the Coastal Impact Assistance Program, U.S. Fish & Wildlife 
Service, through the Alaska Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development, Grant #10-CIAP-0009, “Habitat Mapping 
and Analysis Project” 



DETAILED AGENDA 
 
WESPAK-SE history, general structure 
Why standardize?  Repeatability. 
 
Definitions of functions 
Functions vs. Values 
Indicators used 
UAS web site 
 
How the spreadsheet calculates scores 
How scores are normalized 
How the normalized scores convert to ratings 
 
Virtual tour of highest- and lowest-scoring wetlands 
 
How to trace which wetland features most responsible 
for a high or low score. 
 
Limitations.  Watershed approach. 
 
Description of each function and value model.  
 
(afternoon):  Some options for score roll-ups. 





2009-present 

2011-present 

2012-
present 

Oregon 

Alaska Southeast 

Alberta (3 regions) 

United States 

1983, 1987 

WET/ WESP 
regionalizations 



What the WESPAK-SE output looks like: 



Different Wetlands are Important for Different Things 



Different Wetlands are Important for Different Things 



Different Wetlands are Important for Different Things 



“Office” Indicators 



http://seakgis.alaska.edu/flex/wetlands/ 



On-site (Field) Indicators 



Example of a WESPAK-SE question: 



WRB Questions: 
 
Office Form question 42, 43, 44:  Some of the birds here are not on the 
Audubon watch list for Alaska; half of them don’t nest here. Please explain. 
Andres & Browne (Yakutat):  
   Red-throated Loon, Osprey, Peregrine (probable) 
Piston & Heinl (Ketchikan):  
   Lesser Yellowlegs, Solitary Sandpiper (probable) 
 
Office Form question 41 on amphibians:  has a species (northwestern 
salamander) found in only two locations in Southeast Alaska.  
 
Field question #45, nitrogen fixers:  this lists clover, which is an invasive 
species. Could this be part of the invasive species list instead? Please 
explain.  



The spreadsheet structure. [calculator file] 
 
How the spreadsheet calculates scores 
 
How scores are normalized [normalization file] 
 
How the normalized scores convert to ratings [Jenks, histograms] 



WESPAK-SE Score Distributions Varied by 
Function 

 

 

 

Anadromous Fish Carbon Sequestration 



Limitations of the Study 
 

•  Boundary determinations, not official delineations. 
•  One-time visit to each wetland. 
•  Variation within wetlands. Defining rare “types”. 
•  Use of some secondary data sources. 
•  Scores are not “real” measures of functions: indicators, 
hypotheses.  
•  Were normalized only to the studied wetlands, not to all 
Juneau or Southeast Alaska wetlands.  
•  Expiration dates. 
•  Nobody fully understands what drives a wetland’s functions. 
•  Score distributions of different functions differ. 
•  Modifying data inputs would require re-doing entire study. 
•  Modifying models now would require recomputing all scores 
and would deviate from the WESPAK-SE version being used 
elsewhere in the region. 



Virtual tour of highest- and lowest-scoring wetlands 
 
How to trace which wetland features most responsible for a 
high or low score. 
 
 





WESPAK-SE  model for Surface Water Storage  

Context of the Function: 
IF((FloodBdg=1, 1, ELSE: AVERAGE: 
[ average (CAunveg, Glacier, ShedPos,CApct),Transport)] 

Function Model 
IF((NoOutlet=1), 1,  
IF((AllSat=1), AVERAGE(Gradient, Subsurface, 
AVERAGE(Freezing, Friction)), 
ELSE: (4*LiveStore + 2*Friction + Subsurf)/7))  



WESPAK-SE  model for Stream Flow Support (SFS) 

Function Model: 
OutDur * { [(2*GroundwaterInput) + ClimateFactors)] / 3 } 

Value of the Function: 
average (InvScore, AnadScore, ResFishScore, Glacier, Elev) 



Phosphorus Retention Sediment Retention  

Function: 
IF((AllSat=1), DryIntercept, 
IF((NoOutlet=1),1, ELSE:  
(2*AVERAGE(Entrain, LiveStore) + 
AVERAGE(DryIntercept, 
WetIntercept, Frozen))/3))  

Value of the Function: 
MAX(ToxData, ToxUp, 
AVERAGE(Inflo,SatPct,FlowIn,Glacier, 
AVERAGE(ImpervPctSS,ErodibleSS,Se
dIn, CAnatPct, 
BuffSlope,Elev,CApct,TransportSS,Ma
xFluc,NewWeta)  

Function: 
IF((AllSat=1),AVERAGE(IntercepDry, 
Adsorb,FreezeDura),  
IF((NoOut=1),1, ELSE:  
(3*AVERAGE(Adsorption, 
Desorption) + 2*Connectivity+ 
(AVERAGE(InterceptWet, 
interceptDry) + FreezeDuration) / 7  

Value of the Function: 
MAX(Pload,AVERAGE((Inflo,StreamIn
Grad, Glacier, 
AVERAGE(BuffSlope,ErodScore,PosSh
ed, NewWet,CApct,Transport, Anad, 
Groundw, ImpervCA,NatCApct))  



Carbon Sequestration 

(2*MAX(HistAccum, PhysAccum) + Productiv +3*MethLimit) /6  



(3*ExportPotential+ 2*CurrentProductivity + HistoricalAccumulation) /6  

Organic Nutrient Export 



WESPAK-SE model for Aquatic Invertebrates 

Function: 

AVERAGE 
[Struc,Productivity,AVERAGE(Hydropd,Connec,Stressors,LScape]  

Value of the function: 
MAX(UniqPatch,DistRareTyp,RareWclass, 
AVERAGE(AnadFish,ResFish,Amphib,WbirdF,WbirdNest,SongbMam))  



Anadromous Fish Habitat Resident & Other Fish Habitat 

Function: 
IF((Access=0),0, 
IF((AllSat=0),0, ELSE  
(AVERAGE(Access,OutDura)) 
X 
(AVERAGE(HydroRegime,Structure,
Productivity,LScape,Stress)) 

Value of the Function: 
MAX 
[SalmoShed,AVERAGE(WbirdFeed,S
BMscore), AVERAGE(Fishing, Core, 
PopCtr, DistRd), Subsist ]  

Function: 
IF((Fish Access=0),0, 
IF((Water=0),0, ELSE  
AVERAGE(HydroRegime,Structure,
Productivity,AnoxiaRisk, Stress))  

Value of the Function: 
MAX(Waterbird Feeding score, 
Subsist,AVERAGE(Fishing,PopDist, 
DistRd,Core)))  





Amphibian Habitat 

Wood Frog, Western Toad, Long-toed Salamander, Rough-skinned Newt 

Function: 
AVERAGE [(AmPres,AVERAGE(Hydro, AqStruc, TerrStruc, Produc, Climate, 
Lscape, Waterscape, Stress)]  

Value of the Function: 
MAX 
[(AVERAGE(UniqPatch,DistRareTyp, RareWclass, Geog)), 
(AVERAGE(WBFscore,SBMscore)]  



Feeding Waterbird Habitat Nesting Waterbird Habitat 

Function: 
IF((AllSaturated=1),0, 
IF((Wettype=Forested Peatland),0,   
ELSE: 
AVERAGE(Produc, 
AVERAGE(Hydro, Struc, Climate, 

Lscape,Stressors))) 

Value of the Function: 
MAX: 
(MAX(Rare,IBAa), 

AVERAGE(RareWclass,PondNum, 
DuckHunt, PopCtr,Visib)))  

Function: 
IF((AllSaturatedOnly=1), 0, 
IF((TooSteep=1),0, 
ELSE:  
(3*AVERAGE(AqPlantCov, Size, Wettype, 
Wscape) 
+2*AVERAGE(HydroRegime,Structure, 
Productivity) + 

AVERAGE(Stressors,Landscape))/6))  

Value of the Function: 
MAX(PondNum,Rare, IBA, RareWclass)  



Songbird, Raptor, & Mammal Habitat 

Function: 
IF((AllWater=1),0, ELSE: (AVERAGE(PermWpct,AVERAGE(StrucA,StrucB, 

Produc,Lscape,Wscape,Stress))  

Value of the Function: 
MAX[Rare, IBA, AVERAGE 
(RareWclass,PondNum, 
UniqPatch,DistRareTyp)]  



Pollinator Habitat 

Function: 
AVERAGE(Cover2miDiv,PollenOnsite, NestSites)  

Value of the Function: 
AVERAGE(wetuniq,RareWclass, rareherb)  



Native Plant Habitat 

Function: 
(3xAqFertil + 3xTerrFertil + 2xSpeciesArea + 2xLscape + Climate + Compet + 
Stressors)/ 13  

Value of the Function: 
MAX(RarePspp, (AVERAGE(UniqPatch,DistRareTyp,RareWclass, 
Cedar), AVERAGE(Glean,ScoreSBM,ScorePOLf,ScoreSubsis))))  



Public Use & Recognition (Value) 

AVERAGE(Convenience, Invest, RecPot)  



Have We Answered These So Far? 
___ Explanation of how the metrics are calculated for the 22 
functions and 18 values 
___ Address the value determination for anadromous fish and an 
explanation of all 18 values 
___ Explain how connectivity has or has not been addressed in the 
methodology (as addressed in NMFS’ comments)  
___ Explanation of specific bird habitat questions 
___ Explanation of specific questions on amphibians and nitrogen 
fixers 
___ Explanation of weighting for anadromous fish 
 
After Lunch: 
•  Walk through an example of how you would take a wetland 
analysis and categorize it; provide different versions of how you 
would do that.  
•  Explain how a previous community took the data to categorize 
wetlands and how the used the data. 
 



Have We Answered These So Far? 
___ Explanation of how the metrics are calculated for the 22 
functions and 18 values 
___ Address the value determination for anadromous fish and an 
explanation of all 18 values 
___ Explain how connectivity has or has not been addressed in the 
methodology (as addressed in NMFS’ comments)  
___ Explanation of specific bird habitat questions 
___ Explanation of specific questions on amphibians and nitrogen 
fixers 
___ Explanation of weighting for anadromous fish 
 
After Lunch: 
Walk through an example of how you would take a wetland analysis 
and categorize it; provide different versions of how you would do 
that.  
Explain how a previous community took the data to categorize 
wetlands and how the used the data. 
 











Examples from Other Jurisdictions that Categorize Wetlands 
Using Function Scores: 
 
•  Washington State 
 

•  Alberta 
 



How Washington State Rolls Up the Assessment Scores 



Normalize sub-
function scores 
using formula 
(x-min)/(max 

– min) Find percentiles of calibration sites: 
below 40th = d, 40th to 70th = c, 70th 
to 90th = b, above 90th = a, based 
on achieving distribution of 40% d’s, 
30% c’s, 20% b’s and 10 % a’s 
across AB 

Abundance modifier is 
based on regional 
historical loss 
estimation. In areas of 
high historical loss, d’s 
turn to C’s, c’s to B’s, 
b’s to A’s. In areas of 
low historical loss, a’s 
turn to B’s, b’s to C’s, 
and c’s to D’s. In areas 
of moderate historical 
loss, there is no 
change in grade (a 
turns to A). Note that 
the top and bottom 5% 
(5th and 95th 
percentiles of the 
calibration sites) are 
unaffected by the 
abundance modifier 

Province 
of 
Alberta 



Limitations of the Study 
 

•  Boundary determinations, not official delineations. 
•  One-time visit to each wetland. 
•  Variation within wetlands. Defining rare “types”. 
•  Use of some secondary data sources. 
•  Scores are not “real” measures of functions: indicators, 
hypotheses.  
•  Were normalized only to the studied wetlands, not to all 
Juneau or Southeast Alaska wetlands.  
•  Expiration dates. 
•  Nobody fully understands what drives a wetland’s functions. 
•  Score distributions of different functions differ. 
•  Modifying data inputs would require re-doing entire study. 
•  Modifying models now would require recomputing all scores 
and would deviate from the WESPAK-SE version being used 
elsewhere in the region. 



Have We Done These Adequately? 
___ Walk through an example of how you would take a wetland 
analysis and categorize it; provide different versions of how you 
would do that.  
___ Explain how a previous community took the data to categorize 
wetlands and how the used the data. 
 




